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method for obtaining and using notifi-
cations of commencement of abate-
ment activities. 

(6) Follow up to inspection reports. A 
State or Tribal lead-based paint com-
pliance and enforcement program must 
demonstrate the ability to reasonably, 
and in a timely manner, process and 
follow-up on inspection reports and 
other information generated through 
enforcement-related activities associ-
ated with a lead-based paint program. 
The State or Tribal program must be 
in a position to ensure correction of 
violations and, as appropriate, effec-
tively develop and issue enforcement 
remedies/responses to follow up on the 
identification of violations. 

(7) Compliance monitoring and enforce-
ment. A State or Tribal lead-based 
paint compliance and enforcement pro-
gram must demonstrate, in its applica-
tion for approval, that it is in a posi-
tion to implement a compliance moni-
toring and enforcement program. Such 
a compliance monitoring and enforce-
ment program must ensure correction 
of violations, and encompass either 
planned and/or responsive lead-based 
paint compliance inspections and de-
velopment/issuance of State or Tribal 
enforcement responses which are ap-
propriate to the violations. 

(d) Summary on Progress and Perform-
ance. The Summary on Progress and 
Performance described below is part of 
the required elements for the compli-
ance and enforcement program portion 
of a State or Tribal lead-based paint 
program. A State or Tribal lead-based 
paint compliance and enforcement pro-
gram must submit to the appropriate 
EPA Regional Administrator a report 
which summarizes the results of imple-
menting the State or Tribal lead-based 
paint compliance and enforcement pro-
gram, including a summary of the 
scope of the regulated community 
within the State or Indian Tribe (which 
would include the number of individ-
uals and firms certified in lead-based 
paint activities and the number of 
training programs accredited), the in-
spections conducted, enforcement ac-
tions taken, compliance assistance pro-
vided, and the level of resources com-
mitted by the State or Indian Tribe to 
these activities. The report shall be 

submitted according to the require-
ments at § 745.324(h). 

(e) Memorandum of Agreement. An In-
dian Tribe that obtains program ap-
proval must establish a Memorandum 
of Agreement with the Regional Ad-
ministrator. The Memorandum of 
Agreement shall be executed by the In-
dian Tribe’s counterpart to the State 
Director (e.g., the Director of Tribal 
Environmental Office, Program or 
Agency). The Memorandum of Agree-
ment must include provisions for the 
timely and appropriate referral to the 
Regional Administrator for those 
criminal enforcement matters where 
that Indian Tribe does not have the au-
thority (e.g., those addressing criminal 
violations by non-Indians or violations 
meriting penalties over $5,000). The 
Agreement must also identify any en-
forcement agreements that may exist 
between the Indian Tribe and any 
State. 

§ 745.339 Effective dates. 
States and Indian Tribes may seek 

authorization to administer and en-
force subpart L pursuant to this sub-
part effective October 28, 1996. 

PART 747—METALWORKING FLUIDS 

Subpart A [Reserved] 

Subpart B—Specific Use Requirements for 
Certain Chemical Substances 

Sec. 
747.115 Mixed mono and diamides of an or-

ganic acid. 
747.195 Triethanolamine salt of a sub-

stituted organic acid. 
747.200 Triethanolamine salt of tricarboxyl-

ic acid. 

AUTHORITY: 15 U.S.C. 2604 and 2605. 

Subpart A [Reserved] 

Subpart B—Specific Use Require-
ments for Certain Chemical 
Substances 

§ 747.115 Mixed mono and diamides of 
an organic acid. 

This section identifies activities with 
respect to a chemical substance which 
are prohibited and requires that warn-
ings and instructions accompany the 
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substance when distributed in com-
merce. 

(a) Chemical substance subject to this 
section. The following chemical sub-
stance, referred to by its 
premanufacture notice number and ge-
neric chemical name, is subject to this 
section: P-84–529, mixed mono and 
diamides of an organic acid. 

(b) Definitions. Definitions in section 
3 of the Act, 15 U.S.C. 2602, apply to 
this section unless otherwise specified 
in this paragraph. In addition, the fol-
lowing definitions apply: 

(1) The terms Act, article, chemical 
substance, commerce, importer, impurity, 
Inventory, manufacturer, person, process, 
processor, and small quantities solely for 
research and development have the same 
meaning as in § 720.3 of this chapter. 

(2) Metalworking fluid means a liquid 
of any viscosity or color containing in-
tentionally added water used in metal 
machining operations for the purpose 
of cooling, lubricating, or rust inhibi-
tion. 

(3) Nitrosating agent means any sub-
stance that has the potential to trans-
fer a nitrosyl group (–NO) to a primary, 
secondary, or tertiary amine to form 
the corresponding nitrosamine. 

(4) Process or distribute in commerce 
solely for export means to process or dis-
tribute in commerce solely for export 
from the United States under the fol-
lowing restrictions on domestic activ-
ity: 

(i) Processing must be performed at 
sites under the control of the proc-
essor. 

(ii) Distribution in commerce is lim-
ited to purposes of export. 

(iii) The processor or distributor may 
not use the substance except in small 
quantities solely for research and de-
velopment. 

(c) Use limitations. (1) Any person pro-
ducing a metalworking fluid, or a prod-
uct which could be used in or as a met-
alworking fluid, which includes as one 
of its components P-84–529, is prohib-
ited from adding any nitrosating agent 
to the metalworking fluid or product. 

(2) Any person using as a metal-
working fluid a product containing P- 
84–529 is prohibited from adding any 
nitrosating agent to the product. 

(d) Warnings and instructions. (1) Any 
person who distributes in commerce P- 

84–529 in a metalworking fluid, or in 
any form in which it could be used as 
a component of a metalworking fluid, 
must send to each recipient of P-84–529 
and confirm receipt in writing prior to 
the first shipment to that person: 

(i) A letter that includes the fol-
lowing statements: 

A substance, identified generically as 
mixed mono and diamides of an organic acid, 
contained in the product (insert distributor’s 
other identifier for product containing P-84–529) 
has been regulated by the Environmental 
Protection Agency, at 40 CFR 747.115, as pub-
lished in the FEDERAL REGISTER of Sep-
tember 20, 1984. A copy of the regulation is 
enclosed. The regulation prohibits the addi-
tion of any nitrosating agent, including 
nitrites, to the mixed mono and diamides of 
an organic acid, when the substance is or 
could be used in metalworking fluids. The 
addition of nitrites or other nitrosating 
agents to this substance leads to formation 
of a substance known to cause cancer in lab-
oratory animals. The mixed mono and 
diamides of an organic acid has been specifi-
cally designed to be used without nitrites. 
Consult the enclosed regulation for further 
information. 

(ii) A copy of this § 747.115. 
(2)(i) Any person who distributes in 

commerce a metalworking fluid con-
taining P-84–529 must affix a label to 
each container containing the fluid. 

(ii) The label shall contain a warning 
statement which shall consist only of 
the following language: 

WARNING! Do Not Add Nitrites to This 
Metalworking Fluid under Penalty of Fed-
eral Law. Addition of nitrites leads to forma-
tion of a substance known to cause cancer. 
This product is designed to be used without 
nitrites. 

(iii) The first work of the warning 
statement shall be capitalized, and the 
type size for the first word shall be no 
smaller than six point type for a label 
five square inches or less in area, ten 
point type for a label above five but 
below ten square inches in area, twelve 
point type for a label above ten but 
below fifteen square inches in area, 
fourteen point type for a label above 
fifteen but below thirty square inches 
in area, or eighteen point type for a 
label over thirty square inches in area. 
The type size of the remainder of the 
warning statement shall be no smaller 
than six point type. All required label 
text shall be of sufficient prominence, 

VerDate Aug<04>2004 08:54 Aug 03, 2005 Jkt 205170 PO 00000 Frm 00587 Fmt 8010 Sfmt 8010 Y:\SGML\205170.XXX 205170



578 

40 CFR Ch. I (7–1–05 Edition) § 747.195 

and shall be placed with such conspicu-
ousness relative to other label text and 
graphic material, to insure that the 
warning statement is read and under-
stood by the ordinary individual under 
customary conditions of purchase and 
use. 

(e) Liability and determining whether a 
chemical substance is subject to this sec-
tion. (1) If a manufacturer or importer 
of a chemical substance which is de-
scribed by the generic chemical name 
in paragraph (a) of this section makes 
an inquiry under § 710.7(g) of this chap-
ter or § 720.25(b) of this chapter as to 
whether the specific substance is on 
the Inventory and EPA informs the 
manufacturer or importer that the sub-
stance is on the Inventory, EPA will 
also inform the manufacturer or im-
porter whether the substance is subject 
to this section. 

(2) Except for manufacturers and im-
porters of P-84–529, no processor, dis-
tributor, or user of P-84–529 will be in 
violation of this section unless that 
person has received a letter specified in 
paragraph (d)(1) of this section or a 
container with the label specified in 
paragraph (d)(2) of this section. 

(f) Exemptions. A person identified in 
paragraphs (c) and (d) of this section is 
not subject to the requirements of 
those paragraphs if: 

(1) The person manufactures, im-
ports, processes, distributes in com-
merce, or uses the substance only in 
small quantities solely for research and 
development and in accordance with 
section 5(h)(3) of the Act. 

(2) The person manufactures, im-
ports, processes, distributes in com-
merce, or uses the substance only as an 
impurity. 

(3) The person imports, processes, 
distributes in commerce, or uses the 
substance only as part of an article. 

(4) The person processes or distrib-
utes the substance in commerce solely 
for export and, when distributing in 
commerce, lables the substance in ac-
cordance with section 12(a)(1)(B) of the 
Act. 

(g) Enforcement. (1) Failure to comply 
with any provision of this section is a 
violation of section 15 of the Act [15 
U.S.C. 2614]. 

(2) Failure or refusal to permit access 
to or copying of records, as required 

under section 11 of the Act, is a viola-
tion of section 15 of the Act [15 U.S.C. 
2614]. 

(3) Failure or refusal to permit entry 
or inspection, as required under section 
11 of the Act, is a violation of section 
15 of the Act [15 U.S.C. 2614]. 

(4) Violators may be subject to the 
civil and criminal penalties in section 
16 of the Act [15 U.S.C. 2615] for each 
violation. 

(5) EPA may seek to enjoin the proc-
essing, distribution in commerce, or 
use of a chemical substance in viola-
tion of this section; act to seize any 
chemical substance processed, distrib-
uted in commerce, or used in violation 
of this section; or take other actions 
under the authority of sections 7 and 17 
of the Act [15 U.S.C. 2605 and 2616]. 

[49 FR 36855, Sept. 20, 1984] 

§ 747.195 Triethanolamine salt of a 
substituted organic acid. 

This section identifies activities with 
respect to a chemical substance which 
are prohibited and requires that warn-
ings and instructions accompany the 
substance when distributed in com-
merce. 

(a) Chemical substance subject to this 
section. The following chemical sub-
stance, referred to by its premanufac-
ture notice number and generic chem-
ical name, is subject to this section: P- 
84–310, triethanolamine salt of a sub-
stituted organic acid. 

(b) Definitions. Definitions in section 
3 of the Act, 15 U.S.C. 2602, apply to 
this section unless otherwise specified 
in this paragraph. In addition, the fol-
lowing definitions apply: 

(1) The terms Act, article, chemical 
substance, commerce, importer, impurity, 
Inventory, manufacturer, person, process, 
processor, and small quantities solely for 
research and development, have the same 
meaning as in § 720.3 of this chapter. 

(2) Metalworking fluid means a liquid 
of any viscosity or color containing in-
tentionally added water used in metal 
machining operations for the purpose 
of cooling, lubricating, or rust inhibi-
tion. 

(3) Nitrosating agent means any sub-
stance that has the potential to trans-
fer a nitrosyl group (—NO) to a pri-
mary, secondary, or tertiary amine to 
form the corresponding nitrosamine. 
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(4) Process or distribute in commerce 
solely for export means to process or dis-
tribute in commerce solely for export 
from the United States under the fol-
lowing restrictions on domestic activ-
ity: 

(i) Processing must be performed at 
sites under the control of the proc-
essor. 

(ii) Distribution in commerce is lim-
ited to purposes of export. 

(iii) The processor or distributor may 
not use the substance except in small 
quantities solely for research and de-
velopment. 

(c) Use limitations. (1) Any person pro-
ducing a metalworking fluid, or a prod-
uct which could be used in or as a met-
alworking fluid, which includes as one 
of its components P-84–310, is prohib-
ited from adding any nitrosating agent 
to the metalworking fluid or product. 

(2) A person using as a metalworking 
fluid a product containing P-84–310 is 
prohibited from adding any nitrosating 
agent to the product. 

(d) Warnings and instructions. (1) Any 
person who distributes in commerce P- 
84–310 in a metalworking fluid, or in 
any form in which it could be used as 
a component of a metalworking fluid, 
must send to each recipient of P-84–310 
and confirm receipt in writing prior to 
the first shipment to that person: 

(i) A letter that includes the fol-
lowing statements: A substance, identi-
fied generically as a triethanolamine 
salt of a substituted organic acid, con-
tained in the product (insert distribu-
tor’s trade name or other identifier for 
product containing P-84–310) has been 
regulated by the Environmental Pro-
tection Agency, at 40 CFR 747.195, as 
published in the FEDERAL REGISTER of 
June 14, 1984. A copy of the regulation 
is enclosed. The regulation prohibits 
the addition of any nitrosating agent, 
including nitrites, to the triethanol-
amine salt of a substituted organic 
acid, when the substance is or could be 
used in metalworking fluids. The addi-
tion of nitrites or other nitrosating 
agents to this substance leads to for-
mation of a substance known to cause 
cancer in laboratory animals. The tri-
ethanolamine salt of a substituted or-
ganic acid has been specifically de-
signed to be used without nitrites. Con-

sult the enclosed regulation for further 
information. 

(ii) A copy of this § 747.195. 
(2)(i) Any person who distributes in 

commerce a metalworking fluid con-
taining P-84–310 must affix a label to 
each container containing the fluid. 

(ii) The label shall contain a warning 
statement which shall consist only of 
the following language: 

WARNING! Do Not Add Nitrites to This 
Metalworking Fluid under Penalty of Fed-
eral Law. Addition of nitrites leads to forma-
tion of a substance known to cause cancer. 
This product is designed to be used without 
nitrites. 

(iii) The first word of the warning 
statement shall be capitalized, and the 
type size for the first word shall be no 
smaller than six point type for a label 
five square inches or less in area, ten 
point type for a label above five but 
below ten square inches in area, twelve 
point type for a label above ten but 
below fifteen square inches in area, 
fourteen point type for a label above 
fifteen but below thirty square inches 
in area, or eighteen point type for a 
label over thirty square inches in area. 
The type size of the remainder of the 
warning statement shall be no smaller 
than six point type. All required label 
text shall be of sufficient prominence, 
and shall be placed with such conspicu-
ousness relative to other label text and 
graphic material, to insure that the 
warning statement is read and under-
stood by the ordinary individual under 
customary conditions of purchase and 
use. 

(e) Liability and determining whether a 
chemical substance is subject to this sec-
tion. (1) If a manufacturer or importer 
of a chemical substance which is de-
scribed by the generic chemical name 
in paragraph (a) of this section makes 
an inquiry under § 710.7(g) of this chap-
ter or § 720.25(b) of this chapter as to 
whether the specific substance is on 
the Inventory and EPA informs the 
manufacturer or importer that the sub-
stance is on the Inventory, EPA will 
also inform the manufacturer or im-
porter whether the substance is subject 
to this section. 

(2) Except for manufacturers and im-
porters of P-84–310, no processor, dis-
tributor, or user of P-84–310 will be in 
violation of this section unless that 
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person has received a letter specified in 
paragraph (d)(1) of this section or a 
container with the label specified in 
paragraph (d)(2) of this section. 

(f) Exemptions. A person identified in 
paragraphs (c) and (d) of this section is 
not subject to the requirements of 
those paragraphs if: 

(1) The person manufactures, im-
ports, processes, distributes in com-
merce, or uses the substance only in 
small quantities solely for research and 
development and in accordance with 
section 5(h)(3) of the Act. 

(2) The person manufactures, im-
ports, processes, distributes in com-
merce, or uses the substance only as an 
impurity. 

(3) The person imports, processes, 
distributes in commerce, or uses the 
substance only as part of an article. 

(4) The person processes or distrib-
utes the substance in commerce solely 
for export, and when distributing in 
commerce, labels the substance in ac-
cordance with section 12(a)(1)(B) of the 
Act. 

(g) Enforcement. (1) Failure to comply 
with any provision of this section is a 
violation of section 15 of the Act (15 
U.S.C. 2614). 

(2) Failure or refusal to permit access 
to or copying of records, as required 
under section 11 of the Act, is a viola-
tion of section 15 of the Act (15 U.S.C. 
2614). 

(3) Failure or refusal to permit entry 
or inspection, as required under section 
11 of the Act, is a violation of section 
15 of the Act (15 U.S.C. 2614). 

[49 FR 24668, June 14, 1984] 

§ 747.200 Triethanolamine salt of tri-
carboxylic acid. 

This section identifies activities with 
respect to two chemical substances 
which are prohibited and requires that 
warnings and instructions accompany 
the substances when distributed in 
commerce. 

(a) Chemical substances subject to this 
section. The following chemical sub-
stances, referred to by their 
premanufacture notice numbers and 
generic chemical names, are subject to 
this section: 

P-83–1005, triethanolamine salt of tricar-
boxylic acid; and 

P-83–1062, tricarboxylic acid. 

(b) Definitions. Definitions in section 
3 of the Act, 15 U.S.C. 2602, apply to 
this section unless otherwise specified 
in this paragraph. In addition, the fol-
lowing definitions apply: 

(1) The terms Act, article, byproducts, 
chemical substance, commerce, imported, 
impurity, Inventory, manufacture or im-
port for commercial purposes, manufac-
ture solely for export, manufacturer, new 
chemical substance, person, process, proc-
essor, and small quantities solely for re-
search and development have the same 
meaning as in § 720.3 of this chapter. 

(2) Metalworking fluid means a liquid 
of any viscosity or color containing in-
tentionally added water used in metal 
machining operations for the purpose 
of cooling or lubricating. 

(3) Nitrosating agent means any sub-
stance that has the potential to trans-
fer a nitrosyl group (—NO) to a sec-
ondary or tertiary amine to form the 
corresponding nitrosamine. 

(c) Use limitations. (1) Any person pro-
ducing a metalworking fluid, or a prod-
uct which could be used in or as a met-
alworking fluid, which includes as one 
of its components P-83–1005 is prohib-
ited from adding any nitrosating agent 
to the metalworking fluid or product. 

(2) Any person using as metalworking 
fluid a product containing P-83–1005 is 
prohibited from adding any nitrosating 
agent to the product. 

(d) Warnings and instructions. (1) Any 
person who distributes in commerce P- 
83–1005 in a metalworking fluid, or in 
any form in which it could be used as 
a component of a metalworking fluid, 
must sent to each recipient of P-83–1005 
and confirm receipt prior to the first 
shipment to that person: 

(i) A letter that includes the fol-
lowing statements: 

A substance, identified generically as tri-
ethanolamine salt, of tricarboxylic acid, con-
tained in the product (insert distributor’s trade 
name or other identifier for product containing 
P-83–1005) has been regulated by the Environ-
mental Protection Agency, at 40 CFR 747.200, 
as published in the FEDERAL REGISTER of 
January 23, 1984. A copy of the regulation is 
enclosed. The regulation prohibits the addi-
tion of any nitrosating agent, including 
nitrites, to the triethanolamine salt of 
tricarboxylic acid, when the substance is or 
could be used in metalworking fluids. The 
addition of nitrites or other nitrosating 
agents to this substance leads to formation 
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of a substance known to cause cancer in lab-
oratory animals. The triethanolamine salt of 
the tricarboxylic acid, has been specifically 
designed to be used without nitrites. Consult 
the enclosed regulation for further informa-
tion. 

(ii) A copy of this rule. 
(2) Any person who distributes in 

commerce a metalworking fluid con-
taining P-83–1005 must affix to each 
container containing the fluid a label 
that includes, in letters no smaller 
than ten point type, the following 
statement: 

WARNING! Do Not Add Nitrites to This 
Metalworking Fluid under Penalty of Fed-
eral Law. Addition of nitrite leads to forma-
tion of a substance known to cause cancer. 
This product is designed to be used without 
nitrites. 

(3) Any person who distributes in 
commerce P-83–1062 in any form in 
which it could be combined with water 
and triethanolamine to produce P-83– 
1005 must send to each recipient of P- 
83–1062, and confirm receipt prior to 
the first shipment to that person: 

(i) A letter that includes the fol-
lowing statements: 

A substance, identified generically as 
tricarboxylic acid, contained in the product 
(insert distributor’s trade name or other identi-
fier for product containing P-83–1062) has been 
regulated by the Environmental Protection 
Agency (40 CFR 747.200 published in the FED-
ERAL REGISTER of January 23, 1984. A copy of 
the regulation is enclosed. Combining 
tricarboxylic acid with water and the tri-
ethanolamine produces a substance, identi-
fied generically as the triethanolamine salt 
of the tricarboxylic acid. The regulation pro-
hibits the addition of nitrosating agents, in-
cluding nitrites, to the triethanolamine salt 
of tricarboxylic acid, when that substance is 
or could be used in metalworking fluids. The 
addition of nitrites or other nitrosating 
agents to that substance leads to formation 
of a substance known to cause cancer in lab-
oratory animals. Consult the enclosed regu-
lation for further information. 

(ii) A copy of this rule. 
(e) Liability and determining whether a 

chemical substance is subject to this sec-
tion. (1) If a manufacturer or importer 
of a chemical substance which is de-
scribed by one of the generic names in 
paragraph (a) of this section makes an 
inquiry under § 710.7(g) of this chapter 
or § 720.25(b) of this chapter as to 
whether the specific substance is on 

the Inventory and EPA informs the 
manufacturer or importer that the sub-
stance is on the Inventory, EPA will 
also inform the manufacturer or im-
porter whether the substance is subject 
to this section. 

(2) Except for manufacturers and im-
porters of P-83–1005 and P-83–1062, no 
processor, distributor, or user of P-83– 
1005 or P-83–1062 will be in violation of 
this section unless that person has re-
ceived a letter specified in paragraph 
(d)(1) or (3) of this section or a con-
tainer with the label specified in para-
graph (d)(2) of this section. 

(f) Exemptions and exclusions. The 
chemical substances identified in para-
graph (a) of this section are not subject 
to the requirements of paragraphs (c) 
and (d) of this section, if: 

(1) The substance is manufactured, 
imported, processed, distributed in 
commerce, and used only in small 
quantities solely for research and de-
velopment, and if the substance is 
manufactured, imported, processed, 
distributed in commerce, and used in 
accordance with section 5(h)(3) of the 
Act. 

(2) The substance is manufactured, 
imported, processed, distributed in 
commerce, or used only as an impurity. 

(3) The substance is imported, proc-
essed, distributed in commerce, or used 
only as part of an article. 

(4) The substance is manufactured 
solely for export. 

(g) Enforcement. (1) Failure to comply 
with any provision of this section is a 
violation of section 15 of the Act (15 
U.S.C. 2614). 

(2) Failure or refusal to permit access 
to or copying of records, as required 
under section 11 of the Act, is a viola-
tion of a section 15 of the Act (15 U.S.C. 
2614). 

(3) Failure or refusal to permit entry 
or inspection, as required under section 
11 of the Act, is a violation of section 
15 of the Act (15 U.S.C. 2614). 

(4) Violators may be subject to the 
civil and criminal penalties in section 
16 of the Act (15 U.S.C 2615) for each 
violation. 

(5) EPA may seek to enjoin the proc-
essing, distribution in commerce, or 
use of a chemical substance in viola-
tion of this section, act to seize any 
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chemical substance, processed, distrib-
uted in commerce, or used in violation 
of this section or take other actions 
under the authority of section 7 or 17 of 
the Act (15 U.S.C. 2605 or 2616). 

[49 FR 2772, Jan. 23, 1984] 

PART 749—WATER TREATMENT 
CHEMICALS 

Subparts A–C [Reserved] 

Subpart D—Air Conditioning and Cooling 
Systems 

Sec. 
749.68 Hexavalent chromium-based water 

treatment chemicals in cooling systems. 

AUTHORITY: 15 U.S.C. 2605 and 2607. 

Subpart A–C [Reserved] 

Subpart D—Air Conditioning and 
Cooling Systems 

§ 749.68 Hexavalent chromium-based 
water treatment chemicals in cool-
ing systems. 

(a) Chemicals subject to this section. 
Hexavalent chromium-based water 
treatment chemicals that contain 
hexavalent chromium, usually in the 
form of sodium dichromate (CAS No. 
10588–01–9), are subject to this section. 
Other examples of hexavalent chro-
mium compounds that can be used to 
treat water are: Chromic acid (CAS No. 
7738–94–5), chromium trioxide (CAS No. 
1333–83–0), dichromic acid (CAS 
No.13530–68–2), potassium chromate 
(CAS No. 7789–00–6), potassium dichro-
mate (CAS No. 7778–50–9), sodium chro-
mate (CAS No. 7775–11–3), zinc chro-
mate (CAS No. 13530–65–9), zinc chro-
mate hydroxide (CAS No. 153936–94–6), 
zinc dichromate (CAS No. 14018–95–2), 
and zinc potassium chromate (CAS No. 
11103–86–9). 

(b) Purpose. The purpose of this sec-
tion is to impose certain requirements 
on activities involving hexavalent 
chromium-based water treatment 
chemicals to prevent unreasonable 
risks associated with human exposure 
to air emissions of hexavalent chro-
mium from comfort cooling towers. 

(c) Applicability. This section is appli-
cable to use of hexavalent chromium- 
based water treatment chemicals in 

comfort cooling towers and to distribu-
tion in commerce of hexavalent chro-
mium-based water treatment chemi-
cals for use in cooling systems. 

(d) Definitions. Definitions in section 
3 of the Toxic Substances Control Act, 
15 U.S.C. 2602, apply to this section un-
less otherwise specified in this para-
graph. In addition, the following defini-
tions apply: 

(1) Act means the Toxic Substances 
Control Act, 15 U.S.C. 2601 et seq. 

(2) Chilled water loop means any 
closed cooling water system that trans-
fers heat from air handling units or re-
frigeration equipment to a refrigera-
tion machine, or chiller. 

(3) Closed cooling water system means 
any configuration of equipment in 
which heat is transferred by circu-
lating water that is contained within 
the equipment and not discharged to 
the air; chilled water loops are in-
cluded. 

(4) Comfort cooling towers means cool-
ing towers that are dedicated 
exlusively to and are an integral part 
of heating, ventilation, and air condi-
tioning or refrigeration systems. 

(5) Container means any bag, barrel, 
bottle, box, can, cylinder, drum, or the 
like that holds hexavalent chromium- 
based water treatment chemicals for 
use in cooling systems. 

(6) Cooling tower means an open water 
recirculating device that uses fans or 
natural draft to draw or force ambient 
air through the device to cool warm 
water by direct contact. 

(7) Cooling system means any cooling 
tower or closed cooling water system. 

(8) Distributor means any person who 
distributes in commerce water treat-
ment chemicals for use in cooling sys-
tems. 

(9) EPA means the Environmental 
Protection Agency. 

(10) Hexavalent chromium means the 
oxidation state of chromium with an 
oxidation number of +6; a coordination 
number of 4 and tetrahedral geometry. 

(11) Hexavalent chromium-based water 
treatment chemicals means any chemical 
containing hexavalent chromium 
which can be used to treat water, ei-
ther alone or in combination with 
other chemicals, where the mixture 
can be used to treat water. 
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